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STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. Meeting
Friday, October 6, 2023
Location: 99 MedTech Drive, Innovation Room

8:00 AM
STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC. MINUTES
Attendance
Board Members: P. Zeliff, T. Hens, R. Crossen, S. Mountain. C. Yunker, M. Clattenburg
Staff: L. Farrell, M. Masse, S. Hyde, J. Krencik, P. Kennett, C. Suozzi, L. Casey
Guests: M. Fitzgerald (Phillips Lytle / Audio Conference)
Absent: P. Battaglia

1.0 Call to Order

P. Zeliff called the meeting to order at 8:07 a.m. in the Innovation Zone,

1a. Enter Executive Session

R. Crossen made a motion to enter executive session under the Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open
Meetings Law Section 105, at 8:07 a.m. for the following reasons:

1. The medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or corporation, or
matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension,
dismissal or removal of a particular person or corporation.

2. Discussions regarding proposed, pending or current litigation.

The motion was seconded by T. Hens and approved by all members present.

1b. Enter Public Session

T. Hens made a motion to enter back into public session at 8:48 a.m., seconded by S. Mountain and
approved by all members present.

2.0 Chairman’s Report & Activities:

2a. Agenda Additions / Other Business —

P. Zeliff made a motion to amend agenda item 3b to Resolution Adopting SEQRA, agenda item 3¢
to Determination and Finding of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. Resolution, and agenda item 3d to
Appoint DMR Permittee Signer; the motion was seconded by R. Crossen. Roll call resulted as
follows:

P. Battaglia-  Absent C. Yunker - Yes
T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain - Yes R. Crossen - Yes

M. Clattenburg — Yes

The item was approved as presented.
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2b. Minutes: August 3, 2023

R. Crossen made a motion to accept the August 3, 2023 minutes as presented; the motion was
seconded by M. Clattenburg. Roll call resulted as follows:

P. Battaglia-  Absent C. Yunker - Yes
T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain -  Yes R. Crossen - Yes

M. Clattenburg — Yes
The item was approved as presented.

3.0 Discussions:

3a. Phillips Lytle Additional Legal Work — Phillips Lytle prepared a proposed supplement to
their original engagement letter related to assistance in obtaining up to three easements for the
force main installation.

Fund Commitment: Not to exceed $135,000.

Board Action Request: Recommend approval of the Phillips Lytle supplement to the
engagement letter related to assistance in obtaining up to three easements not to exceed

$135,000.

C. Yunker made a motion to accept the supplement to the Phillips Lytle engagement letter related
to assistance in obtaining up to three easements, not to exceed $135,000 as presented; the motion
was seconded by M. Clattenburg. Roll call resulted as follows:

P. Battaglia-  Absent C. Yunker - Yes
T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain- Yes R. Crossen - Yes

M. Clattenburg — Yes

The item was approved as presented.

3b. Resolution Adopting SEQRA ~ This resolution was distributed to STAMP Sewer Works,
Inc. Board members on October 5. The resolution adopts positive findings pursuant to SEQRA
for the exercise of eminent domain proceedings on any outstanding easements that are needed
for the force main project.

M. Fitzgerald provided an overview of the resolution. He stated that the findings statement
walks through the STAMP environmental record as well as the SEQRA review and focuses on
what is before the Board today, which is the acquisition of the temporary easements for the
construction of the force main that is connected to the WWTF and discharge point in Oak
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Orchard Creek. It also has an appendix responsive to public comments that were received at
the public hearing. The findings statement incorporates all the GCEDC lead agency findings
that have been previously adopted ranging from 2012 to 2023. Although STAMP Sewer Works,
Inc. is not lead Agency, Phillips Lytle recommends adopting the resolution to demonstrate that
the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. Board has taken a hard look at all environmental concerns.

Fund Commitment: None.

Board Action Request: Recommend approval of the positive findings pursuant to SEQRA for
the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. exercise of eminent domain proceedings for the installation of a
force main.

R. Crossen noted the following changes that should be made to the Resolution:

1) On page 14 of the Resolution, the Town of Medina should be amended to the Village of
Medina.

2) On page 16 of the Resolution, language should be amended to indicate that chemicals
will be treated in accordance with the SPDES Permit.

3) Throughout the Resolution, the Town of Oakfield should be amended to the Village of
Oakfield.

4} Throughout the Resolution, wherever Plug Power is referred to as a 45 ton/day facility, it
should be amended to reflect a 74 ton/day facility.

S. Mountain made a motion to accept the Resolution Adopting SEQRA with the above-mentioned
changes; the motion was seconded by T. Hens. Roll call resulted as follows:

P. Battaglia -  Absent C. Yunker - Yes
T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain -  Yes R. Crossen - Yes

M. Clattenburg — Yes

The item was approved as presented.

3c. Determination and Findings of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. Resolution — Included with
the meeting materials was a resolution that lays out the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
determination and findings pursuant to eminent domain proceedings on any outstanding
easements that are needed for the force main project.

Fund Commitment: None.

Board Action Request: Recommend approval of the determination and findings of STAMP
Sewer Works, Inc.

M. Clattenburg made a motion to accept the Determination and Findings of STAMP Sewer Works,
Inc. Resolution; the motion was seconded by T. Hens. Roll call resulted as follows:

P. Battaglia- Absent C. Yunker - Yes
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T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain - Yes R. Crossen - Yes
M. Clattenburg — Yes

The item was approved as presented.

3d. Appoint DMR Permittee Signer - In 2022 the NYSDEC approved and issued the SPDES permit for
the WWTF but they left the DMR limit sets inactive. They were set to become active automatically as of
9/1/2023. That would make the first DMR due 10/28/2023 and if you aren’t operational, you could report
the No Data Indicator (NODI) Code C for No Discharge.

We had CPL look into the reporting process and the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. needs to have someone
register for EPA MyCDX to utilize the NetDMR system and examine the limit set to be familiar with it and
make sure key staff are aware and have the sampling plan prepared. Once an operator is selected, they
will be set up as either the “Data Provider” or the “Permittee with No Signature” in the system. They will
enter the data.

The STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. then needs to appoint a “Permittee Signature” member from the Board to
review, approve and submit the data.

Fund Commitment: None.

Board action request: Appoint Steve Mountain as the authorized “Permittee Signature” within the DMR
reporting system.

R. Crossen made a motion to appoint S. Mountain as the authorized “Permittee Signature” within
the DMR reporting system as presented; the motion was seconded by T. Hens. Roll call resulted
as follows:

P. Battaglia-  Absent C. Yunker - Yes
T. Hens - Yes P. Zeliff - Yes
S. Mountain-  Yes R. Crossen - Yes

M. Clattenburg ~ Yes

The item was approved as presented.

4.0 Adjournment
As there was no further business, S. Mountain made a motion to adjourn at 8:56 a.m., which was

seconded by T. Hens and passed unanimously.
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WWW.mmscpas.com Certified Public Accountants Jason L. Waite, CPA

March , 2024

Board of Directors
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
Batavia, New York

Dear Members of the Board of Directors:

We are pleased to present the results of our audit of the financial statements of the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
(the “Corporation”) for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Our plan for this year’s audit included a commitment to understand and deliver on management’s
expectations. Our approach to the audit was designed to combine a historical perspective with a focus on the
Corporation’s industry and current emerging governmental issues.

This report to the Board of Directors summarizes our audit process, the scope of our engagement, the reports
issued and various observations related to the Corporation’s financial position and results of operations. The

document also reviews the Board of Directors communications required by our professional standards, as well
as current accounting issues that will affect the Corporation.

The completion of this year’s audit was accomplished through the effective support and the assistance of the
Corporation’s personnel. As always, we strive to continually improve the quality of our audit services.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve you. If you have any questions or comments, please call us at (607)
432-8700.

Sincerely,

M iotat, mamaa;wm v Joatt, 4P

Mostert, Manzanero & Scott, LLP

MEMBERS: American [nstitute of Certified Public Accountants, New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants
National Conference of CPA Practitioners

o
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SUMMARY OF WHAT WE AGREED TO DO

Our Approach

As communicated with management in our planning letter dated October 12,2023, our audit plan represented
an approach responsive to the assessment of risk of the Corporation. Specifically, we designed our audit to:
» Issue an opinion on the financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2023.
> Issue a management letter to the Board of Directors and management.

> Issue an Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

Areas of Audit Emphasis

The principal areas of audit emphasis were as follows:
» Revenue and related receivables;

> Expenses and related payables;

» Audit risk assessment;’and

~ Related party activity.
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Board of Directors
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
Batavia, New York

We have audited the financial statements of the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (the “Corporation”), for the year
ended December 31, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated October 12, 2023. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Corporation are deseribed in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing polices was not changed during the year. We
noted no transactions entered into by the Corporation during the yearfor which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates'are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. There are no accounting estimates reflected in the financial statements that
we consider to be a material nature.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the

audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We did
not identify any misstatements required to be disclosed.



Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors” report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April , 2024.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Corporation’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Corporation’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which is required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RST and
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the STAMP
Sewer Works, Inc. and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Mk, Manhano v Joott 4P

Oneonta, New York
March |, 2024



MANAGEMENT LETTER

Board of Directors
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
Batavia, New York

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (the
“Corporation”) for the year ended December 31, 2023, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Corporation’s system of internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Corporation’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these
limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors
and others within the Corporation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Motk ﬂ’)an’*ga_rujw v Joatt, 24P

Oneonta, New York
March , 2024
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4 Associate Drive Deborah L. Mostert, CPA

Oneonta, New York 13820 Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Phone: (607) 432-8700 Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP David E. Brownell, CPA

Fax: (607) 432-5122
Certified Public Accountants Jason L. Waite, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc,
Batavia, New York

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements.of STAMP, Sewer Works, Inc. (A New York
“Corporation”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Corporation as.of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit.in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles‘generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, National Conference of CPA Practitioners



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The Risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements;

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 'Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed, :

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements; and

* Conclude whether,.in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability.to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on Page 4 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, and
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March |, 2024
on our consideration of the Corparation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectivenass of the Corporation's internal contral over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mtk Mantanns « Jeart, 4P

Oneonta, New York
March |, 2024
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STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

This section of the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.’s {the “Corporation”} annual financial report prasents our
discussion and analysis of the Corporation’s financial performance during the year ended December 31,
2023, and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual financial report is made up of two parts: first management’s discussion and analysis and
secondly, the financial statements. The Corporation was established by Genesee Gateway Local
Development Corporation as a New York State Transportation Corporation organized under the
Transportation Corporation Laws of the State of New York. The Corporation’s mission is to provide
sanitary sewer treatment services to businesses located in the western New York Science & Technology
Advanced Manufacturing Park (STAMP).

These statements are presented in a manner similar to a private business.

Financial Analysis

The Corporation was formed in 2021 to provide sanitary sewer treatment services to the STAMP site.
There was no operating income for fiscal year 2023. Non-operating income consisted of interest in the
amount of $2,042. Operating expenses produced a net loss of $175,971. At the close of fiscal year
2023, the Corporation had shareholders equity- of $74,029, which is- attributable to shareholder
contributions. There was no financial activity carried out by the Corporation in 2022,

Contacting Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the public with a general overview of the Corporation’s
finances and to demonstrate accountability for the resources at its disposal. If you have any questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. located
at the Dr. Bruce A. Holm Upstate MedTech Centre, 99 MedTech Dr., Suite 106, Batavia, New York
14020.

A
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STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2023

s, Araft
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY:
Capital
Retained deficit

Total shareholder's equity

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5

138,576

138,576

138,576

64,547

64,547

64,547

250,000
{175,571}

74,029

138,576

! B



STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND
CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Fees and permits
Professional fees
Total operating expenses
Operating net loss
NONOPERATING INCOME:
Interest income
Total nonoperating income
Net loss
Shareholder's equity - beginning

Shareholder's contribution

Shareholder's equity - ending

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

draft

B

101
177,912

178,013

(178,013)

2,042

2,042

(175,971)

250,000

74,029




STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Fees and permits

(76)
(113,390)

(113 466)

3
Professional fees
Net cash used by operating activities d r a t

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest income
Equity investment from Shareholder

2,042
250,000

Net cash provided by investing activities

252,042

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

138,576

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year i

138,576

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating net loss b
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Increase in accounts payable

(178,013)

64,547

Total adjustments

64,547

Net cash used by operating activities $

(113,466)

" See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (the Corporation) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). The mare significant of
the Corporation's accounting policies are described below.

A, REPORTING ENTITY

The Corporation was created in 2021 with a focus to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a sewage works
corporation may be organized under the Transportation Corporations Law of the State of New York, provided that
it may not engage in any act or activity requiring the consent or approval of any state official, department, board,
agency or other body without such consent or approval first being obtained, and further provided that it may
engage in the acts and activities of a sewage works corporation only in.the Town of Alabama, New York and the
Town of Shelby, New York. The Genesee Gateway Local Development Corporation (GGLDC) is the sole
member of the corporation. .

Management has determined that the Corporation is a component unit of the GGLDC in accordance with U.S.
GAAP,

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Corporation’s basic financial statements consist of three statements that provide information about the
Corporation's activities. The first statement is the balance sheet which lists all the Corporation's assets and
liabilities, with the difference reported as shareholder’s equity. The second. statement is the statement of income
and changes in shareholder’s equity which details how the Corporation's shareholder’s equity changes during the
current year based on the reporting of the income and.expenses recognized by the Corporation. The third
statement is the statement of cash flows which reports the activities that provide or use the cash and cash
equivalents of the Corporation.

L. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The Corporation’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. The financial statements of the Corporation use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues

are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash transaction takes place.

D. INCOME TAXES
The Corporation is subject to federal and state income taxes in accordance with corporation tax laws.
E. CASH AND.CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

F. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are reported at their net realizable value. Generally accepted accounting principles require

the establishment of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. No allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable
has been provided since management believes that such allowance would not be necessary.

G. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows the Corparation considers cash and cash equivalents to be all
unrestricted and restricted cash accounts including demand accounts and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.



STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

H. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Corporation has related party relationships with the Genesee Gateway Local Development Corporation (the
GGLDC).

NOTE 3. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The Corporations current year net operating loss results in the creation of deferred tax assets. Management believes
it is more likely than not that the benefit from NOL carryforwards will not be realized, and therefore, has not created a
provision for deferred tax assets on the balance sheet.

NOTE 4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through XXXX, 2024, which is the date the financial statements are
available for issuance and have determined there are no subsequent events that require disclosure under generally
accepted accounting principles.
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4 Associate Drive Deborah L. Mostert, CPA

Oneonta, New York 13820 Anthony T. Manzanero, CPA
Phone: (607) 432-8700 Mary E. Manzanero, CPA
Fax: (607) 432-5122 MOSTERT, MANZANERO & SCOTT, LLP David E. Brownell, CPA
WWW.mmscpas.com Certified Public Accountants Jason L. Waite, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
Batavia, New York

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of STAMP Sewer Works,
Inc. (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended 'December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March |, 2024. , :

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a'basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose. of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness.of the Corporation’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express.an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on & timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, stgh that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency.is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal.contral was:for'the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section.and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknasses or significant deficiencies.” Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies \in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

MEMBERS: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants

National Conference of CPA Practitioners
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, nencompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 1o be reported under
Government Auditing Standards,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mook, Van haninp 4 Joatt 24P

Oneonta, New York
March |, 2024

11



Ac

[STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.]

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

Adopted pursuant to and in accordance with Section 2824(4) and Section 2824(8) of the Public Authorities Law

This Audit and Finance Committee Charter (the “Charter”) was adopted by the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. ("SSWC™), a transportation corporation formed under
Section 3 of the Transportation Corporations Law of the State of New York and in accordance
with the procedure for the formation of corporations set forth in Article 4 of the Business
Corporation Law of the State of New York.

Purpose
The purpose of the Audit and Finance Committee (the “Committee”) shall be to:

Assure that the Board fulfills its responsibilities for SSWC’s internal and external audit
process, the financial reporting process and the system of risk assessment and internal
controls over financial reporting;

Recommend to the Board the hiring of a certified independent accounting firm;

Establish the compensation to be paid to such accounting firm;

Provide direct oversight of the performance of the independent audit performed by such
accounting firm;

Provide an avenue of communication between management, the independent auditors, and
the board of directors;

Review proposals for the issuance of debt by SSWC and its subsidiaries and to make
recommendations; and

Carry out any other responsibilities delegated by the Board relating to SSWC’s audit and
finances.

Powers of the Committee
It shall be the responsibility of the Committee to:

Appoint, compensate, and oversee the work of any public accounting firm employed by
SSWC.

Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of responsibility.
Seek any information it requires from SSWC employees, all of whom should be directed
by the Board to cooperate with Committee requests.

Meet with SSWC staff, independent auditors or outside counsel, as necessary.

Retain, at SSWC’s expense, such outside counsel, experts and other advisors as the
Committee may deem appropriate.

Review proposals for debt issuance by SSWC and its subsidiaries and to make
recommendations.

The Board will ensure that the Committee has sufficient resources to carry out its duties.



Composition and Selection

The membership of the Committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant to Article
IV, Section IV.1 of SSWC’s By-laws. The Committee shall be comprised of the President of the
Board (the “Board President™) and at least three additional “independent members”, within the
meaning of, and to the extent required by, Section 2825 of New York Public Authorities Law, as
amended from time to time. The Committee members shall be appointed by the Board President.
The Board President may designate one member of the Committee as the Committee Chair. The
members shall serve until their resignation, retirement, removal by the Board or until their
successors shall be appointed and qualified. When feasible, the immediate past Committee Chair
will continue serving as a member of the Committee for at least one year to ensure an orderly
transition.

All members of the Committee shall possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and
functions of the Committee, including an understanding of governmental financial reporting and
auditing.

The Committee shall have access to the services of at least one financial expert; whose name shall
be disclosed in the annual report of SSWC.

The Committee’s financial expert should have: 1) an understanding of generally accepted
accounting principles and financial statements; 2) experience in preparing or auditing financial
statements of comparable entities; 3) experience in applying such principles in connection with
accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves; 4) experience with internal accounting controls,
5) experience with debt issuances, and 6) an understanding of audit and finance committee
functions.

Meetings

The Committee will meet a minimum of twice a year, with the expectation that additional meetings
may be required to adequately fulfill all the obligations and duties outlined in this Charter or as
otherwise delegated to the Committee by the Board. All Committee members are expected to
attend each meeting, in person or via videoconference. The Committee may invite other
individuals, such as members of management, auditors or other technical experts to attend
meetings and provide pertinent information as necessary.

The Committee will meet with SSWC’s independent auditor at least annually to discuss the
financial statements of SSWC.

A meeting agenda will be prepared for every meeting and provided to the Committee members at
least two days in advance of the scheduled meeting, along with the appropriate materials needed
to make informed decisions. The Committee shall act only on the affirmative vote of a majority
of the members at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Minutes of these meetings are to be
recorded.

Responsibilities
The Committee shall have responsibilities related to: (a) the independent auditor and the annual
financial statements; (b) SSWC’s internal auditors (if any); (¢) oversight of management’s internal
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controls, compliance and risk assessment practices; (d) special investigations and whistleblower
policies; (e) issuances of debt and (f) miscellaneous issues related to the financial practices of

SSWC.

The Committee shall be responsible for reviewing financial statement accuracy and review of
Revolving Loan Fund requests.

Independent Auditors and Financial Statements

The Committee shall:

Recommend to the Board the appointment of independent auditors retained by SSWC and
pre-approve all audit services provided by the independent auditor.

Establish procedures for the engagement of the independent auditor to provide permitted
audit services. SSWC’s independent auditor shall be prohibited from providing non-audit
services unless having received previous written approval from the Committee. Non-audit
services include tasks that directly support SSWC’s operations, such as bookkeeping or
other services related to the accounting records or financial statements of the authority,
financial information systems design and implementation, appraisal or valuation services,
actuarial services, investment banking services, and other tasks that may involve
performing management functions or making management decisions.

Review and approve SSWC’s audited financial statements, associated management letter,
report on internal controls and all other auditor communications.

Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual
transactions and management decisions, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.

Meet with the independent audit firm on a regular basis to discuss any significant issues
that may have surfaced during the course of the audit.

Review and discuss any significant risks reported in the independent audit findings and
recommendations and assess the responsiveness and timeliness of management’s follow-
up activities pertaining to same.

Internal Controls, Compliance and Risk Assessment

The Committee shall:

Review management’s assessment of the effectiveness of SSWC’s internal controls and
review the report on internal controls by the independent auditor as part of the financial
audit engagement.

Special Investigations

The Committee shall:

Ensure that SSWC has an appropriate confidential mechanism for individuals to report
suspected fraudulent activities, allegations of corruption, fraud, criminal activity, conflicts
of interest or abuse by the directors, officers, or employees of the authority or any persons
having business dealings with SSWC, or breaches of internal control.

Develop procedures for the receipt, retention, investigation and/or referral of complaints
concerning accounting, internal controls and auditing to the appropriate body.



Request and oversee special investigations as needed and/or refer specific issues to the
appropriate body for further investigation (for example, issues may be referred to the State
Inspector General or, other investigatory organization.)

Review all reports delivered to it by the Inspector General and serve as a point of contact
with the Inspector General.

Other Responsibilities of the Audit and Finance committee

The Committee shall:

Present annually to the Board a report of how it has discharged its duties and met its
responsibilities as outlined in the Charter.

Obtain any information and training needed to enhance the Committee members’
understanding of the role of internal audits and the independent auditor, the risk
management process, internal controls and a certain level of familiarity in financial
reporting standards and processes.

Review the Charter annually, reassess its adequacy, and recommend any proposed changes
to the Board. The Charter will be updated as applicable laws, regulations, accounting and
auditing standards change.

Conduct an annual self-evaluation of the Committee’s performance, including its
effectiveness and compliance with the Charter and request Board approval for proposed
changes.

Review proposals for the issuance of debt by SSWC and its subsidiaries and make
recommendations.

Doc #10623049.1
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[STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.]

GOVERNANCE & NOMINATING COMMITTEE CHARTER

Adopted pursuant to and in accordance with Section 2824(7) of the Public Authorities Law

This Governance & Nominating Committee Charter (the “Charter”) was adopted by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (“SSWC™), a transportation corporation
formed under Section 3 of the Transportation Corporations Law of the State of New York and in
accordance with the procedure for the formation of corporations set forth in Article 4 of the
Business Corporation Law of the State of New York.

Purpose
The purpose of the Governance & Nominating Committee (the “Committee”) is to assist the Board

by:

« Keeping the Board informed of current best practices in corporate governance;

= Reviewing corporate governance trends for their applicability to SSWC;

*» Recommending updates to SSWC’s corporate governance principles and governance
practices;

« Advising those responsible for appointing directors to the Board on the skills, qualities and
professional or educational experiences necessary to be effective Board members;

« Nominating candidates for various offices including, but not limited to President, Vice
President, Secretary and Treasurer;

« Examining ethical and conflict of interest issues;

» Performing Board self-evaluations;

« Recommending By-laws which include rules and procedures for conduct of Board business;
and

« Carrying out any other responsibilities delegated by the Board relating to SSWC’s corporate
governance process.

Powers of the Committee
The Board has delegated to the Committee the power and authority necessary to discharge its
duties, including the right to:

« Obtain advice and assistance from in-house or outside counsel, accounting and other advisors
as the Committee deems necessary; and

= Solicit, at SSWC’s expense, persons having special competencies, including legal, accounting
or other consultants as the Committee deems necessary to fulfill its responsibilities. The
Committee shall have the authority to negotiate the terms and conditions of any contractual
relationship to the Board’s adopted procurement guidelines as per Public Authorities Law
Section 2879, and to present such contracts to the Board for its approval.

STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
99 MedTech Drive, Suite 106, Batavia, New York 14020
585-343-4866  Fax: 585-343-0848
Email: _ Web:
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Composition and Selection

The membership of the Committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant to Article
IV, Section IV.1 of SSWC’s By-laws. The Committee shall be comprised of the President of the
Board (the “Board President”) and at least three additional “independent members”, within the
meaning of, and to the extent required by, Section 2825 of New York Public Authorities Law, as
amended from time to time. The Committee members shall be appointed by the Board President.
The Board President may designate one member of the Committee as the Committee Chair. The
members shall serve until their resignation, retirement, removal by the Board or until their
successors shall be appointed and qualified. When feasible, the immediate past Committee Chair
will continue serving as a member of the Committee for at least one year to ensure an orderly
transition.

The Committee members should be knowledgeable or become knowledgeable in matters
pertaining to corporate governance.

Meetings

The Committee will meet a minimum of twice a year, with the expectation that additional meetings
may be required to adequately fulfill all the obligations and duties outlined in this Charter or as
otherwise delegated to the Committee by the Board. All Committee members are expected to
attend each meeting, in person or via videoconference.

A meeting agenda will be prepared for every meeting and provided to the Committee members at
least two days in advance of the scheduled meeting, along with the appropriate materials needed
to make informed decisions. The Committee shall act only on the affirmative vote of a majority
of the members at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Minutes of these meetings are to be
recorded.

Reports

The Committee shall:

« Report its actions and recommendations to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board;

« Report to the Board, at least annually, regarding any proposed changes to this Charter, the By-
laws of SSWC, or the governance principles of SSWC; and

« Provide a self-evaluation of the Committee’s functions on an annual basis.

Responsibilities

To accomplish the objectives of good governance and accountability, the Committee has
responsibilities related to: (a) the Board; (b) evaluation of the Board’s policies; (¢) corporate
governance; (d) ethical and conflict of interests issues; and (e) other miscellaneous issues.

Relationship to the Board

The Board has delegated to the Committee the responsibility to review, develop, draft, revise or
oversee policies and practices for which the Committee has specific expertise, as follows:

STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
99 MedTech Drive, Suite 106, Batavia, New York 14020
585-343-4866 Fax: 585-343-0848
Email: Web:
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* Develop SSWUC’s governance practices. These practices should address transparency.
independence, accountability, fiduciary responsibilities, and management oversight; and
» Develop the skills, competencies and personal attributes required of members of the Board.

In addition, the Committee shall:

» Develop and recommend to the Board the number and structure of committees to be created
by the Board;

« Develop and provide recommendations to the Board regarding Board member education,
including new member orientation and regularly scheduled Board member training to be
obtained from state-approved trainers;

» Develop and provide recommendations to the Board of performance evaluations, including
coordination and oversight of such evaluations of the Board, its committees and senior
management in SSWC’s governance process.

Evaluation of the SSWC’s Policies
The Committee shall:

* Develop, review on a regular basis, and update as necessary SSWC’s code of ethics and written
policies regarding conflicts of interest. Such code of ethics and policies shall be at least as
stringent as the laws, rules, regulations and policies applicable to state officers and employees;

« Develop and recommend to the Board any required revisions to SSWC’s written policies
regarding whistleblower protections;

» Develop and recommend to the Board any required revisions to SSWC’s equal opportunity
and affirmative action policies;

« Develop and recommend to the board any required updates to SSWC’s written policies
regarding procurement of goods and services, including policies relating to the disclosure of
persons who attempt to influence SSWC’s procurement process;

* Develop and recommend to the Board any required updates to SSWC’s written policies
regarding the disposition of real and personal property;

» Develop and recommend to the Board any other policies or documents relating to the
governance of SSWC, including rules and procedures for conducting the business of the Board,
such as SSWC’s By-laws. The Committee will oversee the implementation and effectiveness
of the By-laws and other governance documents and recommend modifications as needed.

Other Responsibilities
The Committee shall:

= Annually review, assess and make necessary changes to this Charter and provide a self-
evaluation of the Committee.

» Annually review the general performance of SSWC relative to budget, capital investment and
jobs created.

Doc #10623057.1
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STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.,
CODE OF ETHICS

The members of the Board of Directors (the “Board™) of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (the

“Corporation”), a duly established transportation corporation of the State of New York (the
“State”), along with the officers and employees of the Corporation, shall comply with and adhere
to the provisions of this Code of Ethics (“Code™), adopted pursuant to and in accordance with
Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law.

ARTICLE 1
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

No officer, director or employee should have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or
indirect, or engage in any business or transaction or professional activity or incur any obligation
of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of his or her duties to the
Corporation or the public interest. or which could adversely affect his or her Judgment in the
discharge of his or her responsibilities.

No officer, director or employee shall:

1.

S
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Accept other employment which will impair his or her independence of judgment in the
exercise of his or her duties.

Accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will require
him or her to disclose confidential information which her or she has gained by reason of
his or her position or authority.

Disclose confidential information acquired by him or her in the course of his or her duties
nor use such information to further his or her personal interests.

Use or attempt to use his or her position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions
for himself or herself or others, including but not limited to, the misappropriation to
himself, herself or to others of the property, services or other resources of the state or the
Corporation for private business or other compensated non-governmental purposes.
Engage in any transaction as a representative or agent of the state or the Corporation with
any business entity in which he or she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might
reasonably tend to conflict with the proper discharge of his or her official duties.

By his or her conduct give reasonable basis for the impression that any person can
improperly influence him or her or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the performance of his
or her duties, or that he or she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any
party or person.

If employed on a full-time basis, individually or through any firm or association of which
such an officer or employee is a member nor corporation a substantial portion of which is
owned or controlled directly or indirectly by such officer or employee. sell goods or
services to any person, firm, corporation or association which is licensed or whose rates
are fixed by the state or the Corporation in which such officer or employee serves or is
employed.



8.

10.

11.

Take action or participate in any manner whatsoever in his or her official capacity in the
discussion, negotiation or the awarding of any contract or in any business or professional
dealings with the Corporation in which the official or employee has or will have an interest,
direct or indirect, in such contract or professional dealings.

Engage in, solicit, negotiate for or promise to accept private employment or render services
for his or her personal benefit when such employment or service creates a conflict or
impairs the proper discharge of his or her official duties.

Directly or indirectly solicit, accept, or agree to accept any gift or financial benefit from
any person, other than a family member, who the Corporation officer or employee knows
is considering, has, or within the previous twelve months has had, any business dealing
with the Corporation that involves any discretionary act by the Corporation officer or
employee. An Corporation officer or employee may accept from such person a gift or gifts
which are customary on family, social, holiday or civic occasions, provided they do not
total more than seventy-five dollars from any person within any calendar year, and further
provided that they were not received under circumstances in which it reasonably might be
inferred that such gift or gifts were intended to influence the officer or employee in the
performance of his or her ofticial duties or reward him or her for any official action. A gift
or financial benefit shall include money, services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality,
thing or promise thereof, or any other gratuity or promise thereof, including any financial
transaction on terms not available to the general public, but shall not include a campaign
contribution. Travel, room and board expenses incurred in the performance of official
duties providing a legitimate public purpose shall be excluded from the provisions of this
section.

Take action on a matter before the Corporation when, to his or her knowledge, the
performance of that action would provide a pecuniary or material benefit to himself or
herself.

An officer, director or employee shall:

1.

Abstain from making personal investments in enterprises in which he or she has reason to
believe may be directly involved in decisions to be made by him or her or which will
otherwise create substantial conflict between his or her duty in the public interest and his
or her private interest.

2. Endeavor to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion among the public
that he or she is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust.
ARTICLE 11
PROCEDURES FOR DISCLOSURE
All directors, officers or employees of the Corporation shall adhere to the following
procedures:

1. All conflicts of interest shall be disclosed in writing to the Ethics Officer as soon

as practicable after learning of the conflict. In addition, in the event a director on the Board has a
conflict, he or she shall verbally disclose the conflict during a public session of a Board meeting



at which the matter creating the conflict appears on the agenda. Such verbal disclosure shall be
recorded in the minutes of the meeting and be made part of the public record.

2. The director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall refrain from
participating in discussions or decisions on the matter creating the conflict. In addition, in the
event a director on the Board has a conflict, he or she shall recuse him or herself from any
deliberations and abstain from voting on such matter creating the conflict.

ARTICLE I
PENALTIES

Failure to comply with this Code may result in penalties as provided for in law.

ARTICLE 1V
ETHICS OFFICER

The Board shall designate an officer, director or employee of the Corporation to serve as
the Ethics Officer of the Corporation. In the event of a vacancy, the President of the Board shall
serve as the Ethics Officer until such time as the Board appoints a successor.

ARTICLE Y
PROHIBITED CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Notwithstanding any other provision contained in this Code, the directors, officers and

employees of the Corporation shall comply with Article 18 of the General Municipal Law of the
State of New York (“GML™).

Doc #10623068.1



STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY GUIDELINES (THE “GUIDELINES”)
Adopted pursuant to and in accordance with Sections 2824 and 2896 of the Public Authorities Law

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

A. “Contracting Officer” shall mean the officer or employee of STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
(hereinafter, the “Corporation”) who shall be appointed by resolution to be responsible for the disposition
of property.

B. “Dispose” or “disposal” shall mean transfer of title or any other beneficial interest in personal or
real property in accordance with Section 2897 of the Public Authorities Law.

G “Property” shall mean personal property in excess of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in value, and
real property, and any inchoate or other interest in such property, to the extent that such interest may be
conveyed to another person for any purpose, excluding an interest securing a loan or other financial
obligation of another party.

SECTION 2. DUTIES
AL The Corporation shall:

(1) maintain adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all property owned by
the Corporation and/or under its control;

(i) periodically inventory such property to determine which property shall be disposed of;
(iii)  produce a written report of such property in accordance with subsection B herewith; and

(iv) transfer or dispose of such property as promptly and practicably as possible in accordance
with Section 3 below.

B. The Corporation shall:

(1) publish, not less frequently than annually, a report listing all real property owned by the
Corporation. Such report shall consist of a list and full description of all real and personal property
disposed of during such period. The report shall contain the price received by the Corporation and
the name of the purchaser for all such property sold by the Corporation during such period; and

(ii) deliver copies of such report to the Comptroller of the State of New York, the Director of
the Budget of State of New York, the Commissioner of the New York State Office of General
Services, and the New York State Legislature (via distribution to the majority leader of the senate
and the speaker of the assembly).

SECTION 3. TRANSFER OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

A. Supervision and Direction. Except as otherwise provided herein, the duly appointed Contracting
Officer shall have supervision and direction over the disposition and sale of property of the Corporation.
The Corporation shall have the right to dispose of its property for any valid corporate purpose.




B. Custody and Control. The custody and control of Corporation property, pending its disposition,
and the disposal of such property, shall be performed by the Corporation or by the Commissioner of General
Services when so authorized under Section 2897 of the Public Authorities Law.

G Method of Disposition. Unless otherwise permitted, the Corporation shall dispose of property for
not less than its fair market value by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit, or other property, with or
without warranty, and upon such other terms and conditions as the Corporation and/or Contracting Officer
deems proper. The Corporation may execute such documents for the transfer of title or other interest in
property and take such other action as it deems necessary or proper to dispose of such property under the
provisions of these Guidelines. Provided, however, that no disposition of real property, or any interest in
real property, shall be made unless an appraisal of the value of such property has been made by an
independent appraiser and included in the record of the transaction, and, provided further, that no
disposition of any other property which because of its unique nature or the unique circumstances of the
proposed transaction is not readily valued by reference to an active market for similar property, shall be
made without a similar appraisal.

D. Sales by the Commissioner of General Services (the “Commissioner”). When the Corporation shall
have deemed that transfer of property by the Commissioner will be advantageous to the State of New York,
the Corporation may enter into an agreement with the Commissioner where under such Commissioner may
dispose of property of the Corporation under terms and conditions agreed to by the Corporation and the
Commissioner. In disposing of any such property, the Commissioner shall be bound by the terms of Section
2897 of the Public Authorities Law and references to the Contracting Officer shall be deemed to refer to
such Commissioner.

E. Validity of Deed. Bill of Sale, Lease. or Other Instrument. A deed, bill of sale, lease, or other
instrument executed by or on behalf of the Corporation, purporting to transfer title or any other interest in
property of the Corporation in accordance herewith shall be conclusive evidence of compliance with the
provisions of these Guidelines and all applicable law insofar as concerns title or other interest of any bona
fide grantee or transferee who has given valuable consideration for such title or other interest and has not
received actual or constructive notice of lack of such compliance prior to the closing.

F. Bids for Disposal; Advertising: Procedure; Disposal by Negotiation: Explanatory Statement.

(1) Except as permitted by all applicable law, all disposals or contracts for disposal of
property made or authorized by the Corporation or Contracting Officer shall be made after
publicly advertising for bids except as provided in subsection (iii) of this Section F.

(i1) Whenever public advertising for bids is required under subsection (i) of this Section F:

(A} the advertisement for bids shall be made at such time prior to the disposal
or contract, through such methods, and on such terms and conditions as
shall permit full and free competition consistent with the value and nature
of the property proposed for disposition;

(B) all bids shall be publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in the
advertisement; and

() the award shall be made with reasonable promptness by notice to the
responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to the invitation for bids, will
be most advantageous to the Corporation, price and other factors
considered; provided, that all bids may be rejected at the Corporation’s
discretion or when it is in the public interest to do so.



(1)

(1ii)

(iv)

Disposals and contracts for disposal of property may be negotiated or made by public
auction without regard to subsections (i) and (ii) of this Section F but subject to obtaining
such competition as is feasible under the circumstances, if:

{A)

(B)

()

(D)

(E)
(F)

(A

(B)

the personal property involved has qualities separate from the utilitarian
purpose of such property, such as artistic quality, antiquity, historical
significance, rarity, or other quality of similar effect, that would tend to
increase its value, or if the personal property is to be sold in such quantity
that, if it were disposed of under subsections (i) and (ii) of this Section F,
would adversely affect the state or local market for such property, and the
estimated fair market value of such property and other satisfactory terms
of disposal can be obtained by negotiation;

the fair market value of the property does not exceed fifteen thousand
dollars;

bid prices after advertising therefore are not reasonable, either as to all or
some part of the property, or have not been independently arrived at in
open competition;

the disposal will be to the state or any political subdivision or public
benefit corporation, and the estimated fair market value of the property
and other satisfactory terms of disposal are obtained by negotiation;

under those circumstances permitted by Section (G) below; or
such action is otherwise authorized by law.

An explanatory statement shall be prepared of the circumstances of each
disposal by negotiation of:

() any personal property which has an estimated fair market value in
excess of fifteen thousand dollars;

(2) any real property that has an estimated fair market value in excess
of one hundred thousand dollars, except that any real property
disposed of by lease or exchange shall only be subject to clauses
(3) and (4) of this subparagraph;

(3} any real property disposed of by lease, if the estimated annual rent
over the term of the lease is in excess of $15,000; or

{4) any real property or real and related personal property disposed of
by exchange, regardless of value, or any property any part of the
consideration for which is real property.

Each such statement shall be transmitted to the persons entitled to receive
copies of the report required under all applicable law not less than ninety
(90) days in advance of such disposal, and a copy thereof shall be
preserved in the files of the Corporation making such disposal.

Disposal of Property for less than Fair Market Value (“\FMV™).

()

No assets owned, leased or otherwise in the control of the Corporation may be sold, leased,
or otherwise alienated for less than its FMV except if:



{A) The transferee is a government or other public entity, and terms of transfer
require that the ownership and use of the asset will remain with the
governiment or any other public entity; or

(B the purpose of transfer is within the purpose, mission or governing statute
of the Corporation; or

{(C) in the event the Corporation seeks to transfer an asset for less than its FMV
to other than a governmental entity, which disposal would not be
consistent with the Corporation’s mission, purpose or governing statutes,
the Corporation shall provide written notification thereof to the governor,
the speaker of the assembly, and the temporary president of the senate, and
such proposed transfer shall be subject to denial by the governor, the
senate, or the assembly. Denial by the governor shall take the form of a
signed certification by the governor. Denial by either house of the
legislature shall take the form of a resolution by such house. The governor
and each house of the legislature shall take any such action within sixty
days of receiving notification of such proposed transfer during the months
of January through June, provided that if the legislature receives
notification of a proposed transfer during the months of July through
December, the legislature may take any such action within sixty days of
January first of the following year. If no such resolution or certification is
performed within sixty days of such notification of the proposed transfer
to the governor, senate, and assembly, the Corporation may effectuate such
transfer. Provided, however, that with respect to a below market transfer
by the Corporation that is not within the purpose, mission or governing
statute of the Corporation, if the governing statute provides for the
approval of such transfer by the executive and legislative branches of the
political subdivision in which the Corporation resides, and the transfer is
of property obtained by the Corporation from that political subdivision,
then such approval shall be sufficient to permit the transfer.

(i1) If a below FMV transfer is proposed, the following information must be provided to the
Corporation’s board and the public:

(A) afull description of Asset;

(B) anappraisal of the FMV of the asset and any other information establishing
the FMV sought by the board,;

(C) adescription of purpose of transfer, and a reasonable statement of the kind
and amount of the benefit to the public resulting from the transfer, including but
not limited to the kind, number, location, wages, or salaries of jobs created or
preserved as required by the transfer, the benefits, if any, to the communities in
which the asset is situated as are required by the transfer;

(D) astatement of the value to be received compared to the FMV;

(E) the names of any private parties participating in the transfer, and if different
than the statement required by subsection (D) of this Section, a statement of the
value to the private party;

(F)  the names of other private parties that have made an offer for such asset, the
value offered, and the purpose for which the asset was sought to be used.

(iii) Before approving the disposal of any property for less than FMV, the board must consider
the information described in the above Section 3(G)(ii) and make a written determination



that there is no reasonable alternative to the proposed below-market transfer that would
achieve the same purpose of such transfer.

These Guidelines are subject to modification and amendment at the discretion of the Corporation’s board
and shall be filed annually with all local and state agencies as required under all applicable law.

The designated Contracting Officer for the Corporation is the Corporation’s Board President,

This policy is hereby adopted and shall be effective immediately as approved and adopted September 20,
2022.

Re-adopted: April 30, 2024

Doc #10623078.1
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PROCUREMENT POLICY SUMMARY CHART

NOTE: THESE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES APPLY ONLY TO GOODS AND

SERVICES PAID FOR BY THE CORPORATION FOR ITS OWN USE AND ACCOUNT.
THEY DO NOT APPLY TO GOODS OR SERVICES (SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
BOND COUNSEL OR CORPORATE COUNSEL) PROCURED IN CONNECTION WITH
SALE LEASEBACK OR A BOND ISSUANCE, FOR WHICH GOODS AND SERVICES A

COMPANY PAYS.
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INTRODUCTION

The policies and procedures set forth herein have been developed by STAMP
Sewer Works, Inc. (the “Corporation”) pursuant to Section 2824 of the Public
Authorities Law regarding the procurement of Goods and Services not required by
law to be procured pursuant to competitive bidding.

These policies and procedures apply only to Goods and Services paid for by the
Corporation for its own use and account. They do not apply to Goods or Services
(such as, but not limited to, Bond Counsel or construction services) for a project
for which the Corporation will not be the project operator or occupant.

DECLARATION OF POLICY

Goods and Services which are not required by law to be procured pursuant to
competitive bidding must be procured in a manner so as to assure the prudent and
economical use of Corporation moneys in the best interest of the Corporation, to
facilitate the acquisition of Goods and Services of maximum quality at the lowest
possible cost under the circumstances and to guard against favoritism,
improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption. To further these objectives, the
Members have adopted the policies and procedures set forth herein governing all
procurement of Goods and Services which are not required to be procured
pursuant to competitive bidding.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms shall have the following meanings:
1 “Corporation” shall mean STAMP Sewer Works, Inc..

4 “‘Competitive Quotations” means the procurement of Goods and/or
Services, in accordance with the provisions of Section “6” herein.

3. “Contract” shall mean a public work contract, a purchase contract, or,
generally a contract for Goods or Services in accordance with the provisions
herein.

4. “County” shall mean the County of Genesee, New York.

5. “Goods” shall mean products, materials, supplies, equipment, apparatus
and other like items, and the necessary Services related to these items.

6. ‘Members” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation.



7. “Procurement” or “procure” shall mean the obtaining, through Contract or
agreement of Goods and/or Services in accordance with these policies and
procedures.

8. “Procurement Officer” shall mean the Treasurer of the Corporation or such
other officer, or employee, or individual designated by the Members to carry out
the general and specific provisions of the policies and procedures set forth herein.

9. “Professional Services” means for those Services requiring special or
technical skills, training, expertise, or licensing, or such Services which involve the
use of professional judgment and/or a high degree of creativity, or which involve a
relationship of personal trust or professional confidence including, but not limited
to, engineering, architectural, medical, financial and legal services.

10.  “Services” shall mean, generally, labor and/or construction to be performed.

11.  “Sole Source Goods or Services” shall mean Goods or Services for which
the Procurement Officer has determined that there is only one possible source
from which to procure the desired Goods or Services, including, but not limited to,
certain patented Goods or Services, or public utilities; provided, however, the
Procurement Officer must certify that such Goods or Services are available from
only one source so that no possibility of competition exists, including a showing
that, at least (a) the unique benefits of the desired Goods or Services as compared
to other such Goods or Services available in the marketplace, (b) no other Goods
or Services provide substantially equivalent or similar benefits, and (c) considering
the benefits received, the cost of the Goods or Services is reasonable, when
compared to conventional methods;

12. “State” shall mean the State of New York.

13.  “Vendor” shall mean a supplier or prospective supplier of Goods or
Services.

DETERMINATION OF PROCUREMENT

The Procurement Officer is hereby designated to be responsible for determining
whether a procurement of Goods or Services is subject to Competitive Quotations
or is exempt from such procurement, and the Procurement Officer is authorized to
determine that the nature of a particular project or class of projects is exempt from
the procurement policies described herein. The Corporation hereby finds and
determines that Professional Services are, in all cases, exempt from these
procurement policies and procedures, as solicitation of alternate proposals and
quotations is not in the best interest of the Corporation in situations in which special
skills and expertise are required.

3



6.1.

6.2

NO COMPETITIVE BIDDING

As of the date of adoption of these policies and procedures, the Corporation is not
subject to the competitive bidding requirements of Section 103 of the General
Municipal Law.

COMPETITIVE QUOTATIONS

Written Descriptions Required

Upon a determination by the Procurement Officer that Goods or Services are to
be procured through competitive or verbal quotations, the Procurement Officer
shall cause to be made a written description for each such Goods or Services to
be procured. Such description need not necessarily include detailed specifications
but may be generic or in outline form or describe the result sought by the
Corporation. Such written description shall contain that information deemed
necessary for the procurement of the desired Goods or Services in accordance
with the policies of the Corporation, including a statement that the requested bid
or quotation price shall include a statement whether cost of delivery is included, a
statement that the Corporation reserves the right to reject all bids or quotations,
waive minor deviations, consider alternative bids or quotations, negotiate price and
terms with those making a bid or quotation (provided that negotiations with all
those making a bid or quotation will be on substantially the same basis and
regarding substantially the same matters), subject to the same terms and
conditions of the written descriptions being sought by the Corporation and a
statement regarding security and/or insurance, if required.

Soliciting Written Competitive Quotations

1. If the cost of the Goods or Services to be procured, based upon the written
description prepared for the desired Goods or Services, will require an expenditure
of more than $5,000, but less than $10,000, the desired Goods or Services shall
be procured through Competitive Quotations solicited from not less than two
Vendors.

2. If the cost of the Goods or Services to be procured, based upon the written
description prepared for the desired Goods or Services, will involve an expenditure
of more than $10,000, the desired Goods or Services shall be procured through
Competitive Quotations solicited from not less than three Vendors.

el If, following reasonable efforts, insufficient numbers of Vendors exist for the
solicitation of the requisite number of Competitive Quotations, then the
Procurement Officer shall cause to be solicited Competitive Quotations from less
than the requisite number of Vendors; provided, however, that the basis and other



6.3.

facts and circumstances or such efforts and/or findings relating to this provision
shall be placed in writing.

4. The Procurement Officer shall cause to be made a record of the written
description, the solicitation of the Competitive Quotations, the Competitive
Quotations received and any other documents or materials prepared or received
in connection with the procurement of Goods and Services of the Corporation.

5. Competitive Quotations need not be sealed and need not be opened and
read at a stated time.

6. The Procurement Officer need not recommend the procurement of Goods
and Services from the Vendor offering the lowest dollar quotation, but may
recommend to the Members determinations of which quotations will fulfill or meet
the best interests or needs of the Corporation, and each recommended
determinations may be based on such factors as, without limitation, quality,
features or options, reliability or reputation of the Vendor, availability of service,
delivery time and location of the Vendor (local vis-a-vis non-local, in-state vis-a-
vis out-of-state or country); and the Procurement Officer may negotiate terms and
price with all Vendors submitting quotations (provided that all such negotiations
will be on substantially the same basis and regarding substantially the same
matters), and the determination of the Members pursuant to the Procurement
Officer’'s recommendations made in good faith shall be final.

Exceptions

1. General Exceptions. The following Goods and Services may be procured
by the Corporation without soliciting competitive quotations:

a. Services performed by inmates, or Goods manufactured, in correctional
facilities operated by the New York State Department of Correctional
Services or in local correctional facilities of this State; provided, however,
that the procurement of such Goods and Services shall be in accordance
with Section 186 of the Correction Law;

b. Goods and Services produced or assembled by the blind or other
severely handicapped; provided, however, that the procurement of such
Goods and Services shall be in accordance with Section 175-B of the State
Finance Law;

c. Goods procured by the County in accordance with subdivision (2) of
Section 408-a of the County Law; provided, however that no such
procurement shall be made from the County when Competitive Quotations
have already been received, unless such procurement may be made upon

20



6.4.

6.5.

the same terms, conditions and specifications of a lower price through the
County;

d. Goods in excess of $500.00 procured by the State through the New
York State Office of General Services, subject to rules established by such
Office, in accordance with Section 163 of the State Finance Law; provided,
however, that no such procurement shall be made from such Office when
Competitive Quotations have already been received, unless such
procurement may be made upon the same terms, conditions and
specifications at a lower price through such Office;

e. Surplus and/or second hand Goods which are being offered for
purchase from the Federal or State governments or any other political
subdivision or public benefit corporation within the State of New York.

2. Special Exceptions. Upon a determination that Goods or Services are (i)
Professional Services, (i) Sole Source Goods or Services or (iii) Goods or
Services deemed by the Procurement Officer, in his or her sole discretion, not in
the best interest of the Corporation to be procured in accordance with the
Competitive Quotation requirements set forth herein, the Procurement Officer may
procure such Goods or Services in such manner as the Procurement Officer
determines to be in the best interest of the Corporation and which otherwise is in
accordance with the policies of the Corporation, as set forth in Section “2” herein.

Authorization

The procurement of Goods and Services which will involve an expenditure of less
than $5,000 may be approved by the Procurement Officer. Authorization for
individual expenditures of $5,000 and over shall require the formal review and
approval of the Corporation’s Members.

Entering Into the Contract

1. Except as provided in Section “6.5.2” herein, upon receipt of the requisite
number of Competitive Quotations, the Procurement Officer shall recommend
to the Members that the Corporation ernter into a Contract, or enter into an
agreement, for such Goods or Services to the Vendor that submitted the
Competitive Quotation with the lowest dollar offer for such Goods or Services,
but subject to the provisions of Section “6.2.6” hereof.

2. If the Procurement Officer shall recommend to the Members that the
Corporation enter into a Contract for Goods or Services to a Vendor that did
not submit the Competitive Quotation with the lowest dollar offer, the



Procurement Officer shall state the reasons such an award furthers the policy
set forth in Section “2” herein and in accordance with Section “6.2.6” hereof.

3. Upon the procurement of Goods or Services in accordance with the provisions
of Section “6.3” herein, the Procurement Officer shall recommend to the
Members that the Corporation award a Contract, or enter into an agreement,
for such Goods or Services to the Vendor identified by the Procurement Officer.

4. Upon receipt of the recommendation by the Procurement Officer regarding the
entering into a Contract, the Members shall authorize the Procurement Officer
to cause to be procured such Goods or Services with the recommended
Vendor; provided, however, that the Members reserve the right to reject all bids
or quotations, waive minor deviations, consider alternative bids or quotations,
subject to the same terms and conditions of the written descriptions being
sought by the Corporation.

Purchases ($5,000 or less)

Notwithstanding the provisions set forth herein, the procurement of Goods or
Services involving an expenditure of up to five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) may
be made without seeking Competitive Quotations; provided, however, that any
agent of the Corporation authorized to make such a procurement shall use his or
her best efforts to obtain the lowest cost for such Goods or Services, but taking
iInto consideration the terms of Section “6.2.6” hereof.

Policy for Corporation’s Benefit

These policies and procedures are intended solely for the benefit of the
Corporation and are not intended for the economic or other benefit of any particular
Vendor making a quotation; and accordingly, no Vendor shall have the right to
challenge the determination of the Corporation to enter into Contracts for Goods
and Services in accordance with the policies and procedures herein set forth.

MISCELLANEOQOUS

1. Procurement of Insurance — Procurement of Insurance Brokerage/Agent is
subject to this Policy as a Professional Service. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, actual insurance policies procured are not subject to
requirements of this Policy. Insurance Policies shall be reviewed by the
Members annually.

2. Genesee County Business Enterprises — It is the preference of the
Corporation to provide opportunities for the purchase of Good and Services
from business enterprises located in Genesee County.

,F,
/
Q)



o

. Minority & Women Owned Business Enterprises (M/WBE) — The
Corporation shall comply with all applicable legal requirements relating to
the hiring of such businesses. It is understood that granting agencies may
enforce requirements regarding M/WBE participation and the Corporation
may not be able to choose lowest responsible bidders in order to comply in
these situations.

. Effect of Other Procurement Requirements — Where the procurement of a
specific Good or Service is to be accomplished using funds other than the
funds of the Corporation and such funding sources specify different or more
restrictive procurement requirements than are provided for in this Policy, the
procurement requirements of the funding source will supersede the
requirements of this Policy.

The Members shall review the policies and procedures herein not later than
March 31, 2023, and each year thereafter. Amendments to these policies
and procedures may be made at any time during the year.

. The unintentional failure to fully comply with the provisions of the policies
and procedures set forth herein shall not be grounds to void action taken or
give rise to a cause of action against the Corporation, the Members, the
Procurement Officer, or any officer or employee of the Corporation.



STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.
99 MedTech Drive, Batavia, NY 14020-3118

Phone: 585/343-4866 Fax: 585/343-0848

COMPETITIVE QUOTATION FORM

Date:
1. VENDOR: Phone:
Address: Fax:

2. REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (to be completed by Corporation):
GOODS/SERVICES NEEDED

Delivery Needed By:

Insurance T is Zisnot required
»  The quotation should include charges, if any, for delivery.
>  The Corporation encourages changes or suggestions offering cost savings.
»  The Corporation reserves the right to reject all quotations, waive minor deviations or consider alternative quotations, subject to the same

terms and conditions or negotiate with Vendors as to price, specifications or terms.
»  If your Goods or Services deviate from the description herein, please note such deviation.
>  Please submit any additional information that is pertinent to your quotation.

3. QUGTﬂ TFON.' The Corporation is requesting your competitive quotation of the Goods or Services described above. Please complete
this quotation, sign and return not later than 5:00 p.m. on . Unsigned quotations will not be
considered.

1, . am an employee of the Vendor identified above and am duly authorized to submit this
quotation.

[Corporation Employee Name]
[Title]

3% Y




STAMP SEWER WORKS, INC.
99 MedTech Drive, Batavia, NY 14020-3118

Phone: 585/343-4866 Fax: 585/343-0848

VERBAL QUOTATION FORM

Date:

Procurement Officer/Corporation Employee:

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION
GOODS/SERVICES NEEDED
Delivery Needed By:
QUOTATIONS
VENDOR TELEP.HO_I\TE # VENDOR QUOTATION
REPRESENTATIVE

1.

5 =

Y —
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VI.

[STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.]
Investment Policy

Adopted pursuant to and in accordance with Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law
Scope

This Investment Policy (*Policy”) applies to all moneys and other financial resources available for deposit and
investment by STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (“Corporation”) for its own use and account. The Corporation
adopted this Policy at a meeting held on April 30, 2024.

Investment Objectives

The primary objectives of the Corporation’s investment program shall be, in order of priority, to: (1) comply
with all applicable provisions of law; (2) safeguard the principal of all deposits and investments; (3) provide
sufficient liquidity to ensure that monies invested are available to meet expenditures as they come due; and
(4) obtain the maximum rate of return that is consistent with the preceding objectives.

Delegation Of Authority

The members of the Corporation hereby delegate their responsibility for the implementation and administration
of the Corporation’s deposit and investment programs, including the authority to execute any security and
custody agreements required by this Policy, to the Treasurer or his or her designee who shall establish written
procedures for the operation of the programs consistent with this Policy. Such procedures shall regulate
subordinate employees and include an adequate internal control structure to provide a satisfactory level of
accountability based on a database or record incorporating descriptions and amounts of deposits and
investments, transaction dates, interest rates, market prices and other information necessary to manage the
portfolio and to identify the sources of all funds being invested.

Internal Controls

The Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that deposits and investments are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized loss or disposition, that such transactions are executed in accordance with proper authorization
and recorded properly and, that such transactions are managed in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

Prudence

The Treasurer, his or her subordinates and any other Corporation employee having responsibility for the
deposit or investment of Corporation moneys shall at all times act responsibly as custodian of the public trust.
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their affairs not for speculation, but for
investment, considering the safety of principal as well as the income to be derived. All Corporation directors,
officers and employees involved in the execution of the investment program shall refrain from personal
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program or which could impair
their ability to make impartial investment decisions, and shall adhere to the Corporation’s Code of Ethics.

Authorized Investments

Except as otherwise may be provided in this Policy, monies not required for immediate expenditure may be
otherwise invested in any of the following:

STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
99 MedTech Drive, Suite 106, Batavia, NY 14020
585-343-4866 Fax: 585-343-0848
Email: Web:



VIL.

i1} Special time deposits or certificates of deposits in a bank or trust company located and authorized to
do business in the State of New York (“bank”);

(2} Obligations of the United States of America;

(3) Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the payment of principal
and interest is guaranteed by the United States of America;

(4) Obligations of the State of New York;

5) With the approval of the State Comptroller, obligations issued pursuant to Section 24.00 and Section
25.00 of the Local Finance Law by any municipality or district corporation;

(&) Obligations of a public corporation which are made lawful investments by the Corporation pursuant
to another provision of law; and

) Certificates of participation issued pursuant to General Municipal Law (“GML"), section 109-b.

Investments shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the Corporation within such time as the proceeds
shall be needed to meet expenditures for the purpose for which the monies were provided and, in the case of
obligations purchased with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at the option of
the Corporation within two years of the date of purchase.

Deposits

All monies collected by any officer or employee of the Corporation shall be deposited in such banks as have
been authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors for that purpose in an amount not to exceed the
amount specified in such authorizing resolution. It is the policy of the Corporation that all moneys collected
by any officer or employee of the Corporation shall be deposited within two days of receipt and under no
circumstance shall deposits occur later than the end of the month in which payment was received.

VIIIl. Diversification

Although it is the policy of the Corporation to diversify its investment portfolio, the opportunity to diversify
among types of investments is very limited because of legal constraints. Subject to these constraints,
however, investments and deposits shall be diversified by financial institution, maturity and type of investment,
a specific bank or trading partner or a specific maturity.

. Authorized Banks and Trading Partners

The Treasurer shall maintain a list of banks and other trading partners approved for investment purposes and
if appropriate, establish limits on the amount of investments that may be outstanding with any bank or trading
partner at any time. All banks and trading partners with which the Corporation conducts business must be
creditworthy as determined by criteria established by the Treasurer. All banks with which the Corporation
does business shall provide their most recent Consolidated Report of Condition (Call Report) to the Treasurer
at his or her request. Trading partners not affiliated with a bank shall be recognized primary security dealers
as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The Treasurer is responsible for periodically
evaluating the financial position of banks and trading partners with which the Corporation does business and,
based on such evaluations, for revising the list of eligible banks and trading partners as he or she deems
appropriate.

Procedures for Securing Deposits, Special Time Deposits and Certificate Of Deposit

(A). Written Security Agreements

Monies of the Corporation shall only be deposited, including certificates of deposit and special time
deposits, in a bank with which the Corporation has entered into a written security agreement. Such
security agreement shall require the bank to secure all Corporation deposits, in excess of the amount
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, in the manner required by the New York State
General Municipal Law (“GML”), section 10 and shall: (1) specify which types of eligible securities
and other collateral authorized by Appendix "A” of this Policy and GML, section 10 are to be provided
by the bank; (2) prescribe the maximum amount of collateral to be provided by the bank at any time;
(3) prescribe the manner in which the market value of the collateral shall be determined and require
any adjustments to market value as required by GML, section 10; (4) require the bank to provide
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additional collateral if the market value falls below the required amount; (5) provide that the collateral
is being provided by the bank to secure all Corporation deposits in the bank, together with agreed
upon interest, if any, and any costs or expenses arising out of the collection of such deposits upon
default; (6) grant a security interest to the Corporation in any securities pledged by the bank to secure
deposits; (7) set forth the conditions under which the collateral may be sold, presented for payment,
substituted or released; (8) define the events of default that will enable the Corporation to exercise
its rights against the pledged securities; (9) require that securities pledged to secure deposits and
not registered in the name of the Corporation be delivered in a form suitable for transfer or with an
assignment in blank to a custodial bank with which the Corporation has entered into a written
custodial agreement; (10) provide for the frequency of valuation of collateral, which shall be no less
frequently than monthly; (11) require that the agreement be properly authorized by the Board of
Directors of the bank and that the bank maintain such agreement as an official record of the bank;
and, (12) contain all such other provisions deemed necessary to enable the Corporation to enforce
its interest in the collateral in the event of default by the bank.

(B). Custody Agreement

All securities pledged by a bank pursuant to a written security agreement shall be delivered to a bank
with which the Corporation has entered into a written custody agreement (“Custodian”). The custody
agreement shall: (1) specify the manner in which the custodian shall hold securities; (2) require the
custodian to hold the securities as agent of, and custodian for, the Corporation and to keep such
securities separate and apart from the general assets of the custodian and not permit them to
become backing for any other deposits or liabilities of the custodian; (3) require the custodian to
confirm in writing the receipt, substitution or release of any securities from the Corporation’s custody
account; (4) provide for the methodology and frequency of valuation of securities held by the
custodian; (5) require the custodian to make appropriate entries on its books at all times showing the
Corporation’s interest in the securities; (6) require physical securities be kept in the custodian’s vault
and physically segregated from the custodian’s property and other property held by the custodian;
(7) require the custodian to subordinate any claims it may have against the pledged securities to the
Corporation’s interest therein; (8) permit the Corporation access to books and records maintained by
the custodian with respect to the Corporation’s account: and, (9) contain any other provisions deemed
necessary and appropriate. A bank shall [not] be permitted to act as custodian of any securities
pledged by such bank to secure Corporation deposits

Purchase and Safekeeping of Investments

The Treasurer shall establish operation procedures for making investments with approved banks and trading
partners. In the case of investments in certificates of deposit and special time deposits, the procedures shall
require the solicitation of quotations from more than one approved bank and whenever practicable, from banks
located within Genesee County. In the case of investments in obligations, the procedures shall; (1) require
the solicitation of quotes from more than one approved trading partner, except in the purchase of governmental
securities at their initial auction; (2) require all purchased obligations, unless registered or inscribed in the
name of the Corporation, to be purchased through, delivered to, and held in the custody of a bank with which
the Corporation has entered into a written custodial agreement which complies with the requirements
contained in paragraph (b) of section X of this Policy; (3) ensure that obligations are purchased, sold or
presented for redemption or payment by a custodian only accordance with prior written authorization from the
officer or employee authorized to make the investment; and, (4) provide that payment of the Corporation’s
funds shall only be made upon delivery of the purchased obligations to the custodian. The Treasurer is further
authorized to purchase obligations; (1) subject to a repurchase agreement in accordance with the procedures
enumerated in paragraph Xll of this Policy; or (2) pursuant to an ongoing investment program which has been
authorized by the members of the Corporation and which provides investment advisory and custodial services
to the Corporation.

Procedures for Repurchase Agreements

The Treasurer is authorized to purchase and sell obligations pursuant to repurchase agreements subject to

the following restrictions:

@) No repurchase transaction shall be entered into with any trading partner until the Corporation has
entered into a written master repurchase agreement with the trading partner,;

STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.

99 MedTech Drive, Suite 106, Batavia, NY 14020

585-343-4866  Fax: 585-343-0848
Email: Web:



12} Repurchase agreements shall be entered into only with trading partners approved by the Treasurer
pursuant to Section IX of this Policy and shall be subject to any trading limits established for each
trading partner;

{3) Only obligations of the United States of America and obligations guaranteed by agencies of the
United States of America where the payment of principal and interest is guaranteed by the United
States of America shall be purchased pursuant to a repurchase agreement;

) Obligations purchased pursuant to a repurchase agreement shall be held by a custodian, other than
the trading partner, pursuant to a written custodial agreement;
(5) The price paid for the securities shall not be in excess of the market value of the securities being

purchased plus any accrued interest not reflected in the market price.

Master repurchase agreements between the Corporation and its trading partners shall: (1) contain procedures
which ensure that the Corporation obtains a perfected security interest in the purchased securities; (2) define
events of default; (3) prohibit the trading partner from substituting securities for the purchased securities during
the term of the repurchase agreement; (4) limit the term of a specific repurchase transaction to a period of not
more than thirty days; (5) contain appropriate margin requirements and procedures for timely correction of
margin deficiencies or excesses; (6) provide that the Corporation shall not make payment for purchased
securities purchased until received by the custodian; (7) require that the terms of all specific repurchase
transactions, including rate, price and a description of the specific securities being purchased, be confirmed
in writing; (8) provide that all specific repurchase transactions shall be subject to the terms of the master
repurchase agreement; and, (9) contain such other provisions as are deemed necessary and appropriate
The written custody agreement shall comply with the requirements of paragraph (b) of section X of the Policy.

XIll. Legal Review
All security agreements, custodial agreements, letters of credit, surety bonds and repurchase agreements

shall be reviewed by the Corporation Counsel or other attorney retained for this purpose to determine their
compliance with the requirements of sections 10 and 11 of the GML and this Policy.

XIV. Reports
The Treasurer shall provide quarterly written investment reports to the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
Such reports shall describe investments in the portfolio and contain any other information deemed necessary
for management purposes.

XV. Annual Review

The Board of Directors shall review this Policy at least annually and make any amendments thereto as are
deemed necessary.
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APPENDIX A

SCHEDULE OF ELIGIBLE COLLATERAL

Eligible Securities

Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of
principal and interest, by the United States of America, a Corporation
thereof or a United States government sponsored corporation.

Obligations issued or fully guaranteed by the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American Development
Bank, the Asian Development Bank, and the African Development Bank.

Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any Corporation of the
United States of America, at a proportion of the Market Value of the
obligation that represents the amount of the insurance or guaranty.

Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of new
York, obligations issued by a municipal corporation, school district or
district corporation of this State or obligations of any public benefit
corporation which under a specific State statute may be accepted as
security for deposit of public moneys.

Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the
United States rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at
least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating
categories by at least one of the three highest rating categories by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of counties, cities and other governmental entities of a state,
other than the State of New York, having the power to levy taxes that are
backed by the full faith and credit of such governmental entity and rated
in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of domestic corporations rated in one of the two highest rating
categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Any mortgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, which may be purchased by Federal banks
under the limitations established by federal bank regulatory agencies.

Commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances issued by a bank, other
than the bank with which the money is being deposited or invested, rated
in the highest short term category by at least one nationally recognized
statistical rating organization and having maturities of not longer than 60
days from the date they are pledged.

Zero coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as
“Treasury STRIPS”.
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Other Eligible Collateral

A surety bond executed by an insurance company authorized to do
business in the State of New York, the claims-paying ability of which is
rated in the highest rating category by at least two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations.

An irrevocable letter of credit issued in favor of the local government for
a term not to exceed ninety days by a bank (other than the bank with
which the money is being deposited or invested) whose commercial
paper and other unsecured short-term debt obligations (or, in the case of
a bank which is the principal subsidiary of a holding company, whose
holding company’s commercial paper and other unsecured short-term
debt obligations) are rated in one of the three highest rating categories
(based on the credit of such bank or hold company) by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization or by a bank (other
than the bank with which the money is being deposited or invested) that
is in compliance with applicable federal minimum risk-based capital
requirements.
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Authority Self-Evaluation of Prior Year Performance

Local Public Authority Name: STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. (SSWC)
2023 Measurements and Results:

1, Operate and maintain any onsite sanitary sewer transmission lines and holding tanks, process
wastewater transmission lines, the discharge forcemain and pump stations at the STAMP site.
Maintained holding tank on site.

2. Support the GCEDC economic development and selling process helping to facilitate capital
investment and job creation commitments and tax base enhancement in the community.
- Supported site visits with potential companies.

3. Enterinto Sewer Supply Agreements with any new tenants at the STAMP site.
- Not applicable at this time.

4. Work with the GCEDC to obtain funding to expand the wastewater treatment facility, pump
stations and the extension of any onsite sanitary sewer lines and/or process wastewater lines to
support development of the STAMP site.

- GCEDC was awarded a $56 million FAST NY grant in 2023 to fund some of this
infrastructure.



New York State Local Public Authority Mission Statement and Measurement Report

Local Public Authority Name: STAMP Sewer Works Corp. (SSWC)
Fiscal Year: January 1, 2024 ~ December 31, 2024

Mission Statement: STAMP Sewer Works, Corp.’s mission is to operate and maintain an onsite waste
water treatment system for sanitary sewer waste from tenants within the STAMP site and the Hamlet of
Alabama. STAMP Sewer Works will also own, operate and maintain an outfall pump station and force
main to accept post treated process wastewater from industrial tenants within the STAMP site.

2024 Measurements:

1. Operate and maintain any onsite sanitary sewer transmission lines and holding tanks, process
wastewater transmission lines, the discharge forcemain and pump stations at the STAMP site.

2. Support the GCEDC economic development and selling process helping to facilitate capital
investment and job creation commitments and tax base enhancement in the community.

3. Enterinto Sewer Supply Agreements with any new tenants at the STAMP site.

4. Work with the GCEDC to obtain funding to expand the wastewater treatment facility, pump
stations and the extension of any onsite sanitary sewer lines and/or process wastewater lines to
support development of the STAMP site,

Authority self-evaluation of prior year performance (based upon established measurements): To Be
provided by March 31, 2025 related to 2024 performance.

Governance Certification:

1. Have the Board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the mission of the
public authority?

Board of Directors Response: Yes
2. Who has the power to appoint management of the public authority?
Board of Directors Response: The Board of Directors

3. Ifthe Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when appointing the
management of the public authority.

Lo
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Board of Directors Response: The Board has not adopted a final, written policy; however, the
Board follows the prudent and reasonable practice of appointing responsible individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board in the implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors Response: The role of the Board regarding the implementation of the public
authority’s mission is to provide strategic input, guidance, oversight, mission authorization,
policy setting and validation of the authority’s mission, measurements and results. The Board is
also responsible for strategy development / strategy authorization and to implement

established programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority’s mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the response to each of these

questions?

Board of Directors Response: Yes
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Client Name: Genesee County Industrial Development Agency
dba Genesee County Economic Development Center
Genesee Gateway Local Development Corporation

GGLDC administrative tasks are performed by GCEDC employees

Audit & Finance Committee Last Reviewed: 6/27/23

CASH CONTROL ACTIVITIES

Cuash Receipts

The GCEDC/GGLDC does not routinely handle cash. When cash is received, it’s generally once a year at
the annual meeting location via registration fees paid. Mail is opened by the Operations Assistant. All
receipts are immediately marked “for deposit only”. The cash receipts are deposited every 3 — 5 days in
the appropriate cash account either in Five Star Bank, Key Bank, or The Bank of Castile. Some receipts
are received directly into bank accounts via ACH/wire transfer. Posting of cash receipts to accounts
receivable is done by the Finance Assistant. The postings are done promptly and accurately recorded as to
customer account, amount and period. The Operations Manager reviews deposits and postings to customer
accounts and general ledger accounts. Any adjustments to cash accounts are approved by the CFO. Cash
held on site is stored in a locked file cabinet and kept independent of mail receipts. A PayPal account is
used for annual meeting registration fees paid. Email notifications are received when payments have been
made. PayPal deposits are recorded in the general ledger weekly by the Finance Assistant and the
Operations Manager reviews the monthly activity.

Cash Disbursements

Cash disbursements are made by check, online payments, online bill pay or bank wire, except for small
amounts from petty cash. Online payments and online bill pay are only made to ensure that bills are paid
on time and to prevent late payment charges.

All checks require two signatures. GCEDC checks must be co-signed by at least one board member.
GGLDC checks are signed by two board members. The GCEDC and GGLDC Audit & Finance Committee
members are authorized bank signers.

All GCEDC line of credit withdrawals must be co-signed by at least one board member. GGLDC line of
credit withdrawals must be signed by two board members.

Checks are pre-numbered and the sequence is accounted for regularly. All blank checks are kept in a secure
location. All cash disbursement records are matched against accounts payable/open invoice files by the
Operations Manager.

Invoices received are date stamped by the Operations Assistant and given to the Finance Assistant for
review, tracking against contracts in place, to make sure supporting documentation is attached, and to
ensure that the appropriate person signs off for approval of payment. All invoices are then reviewed by the
Operations Manager and the CFO prior to disbursement checks being prepared. Checks are prepared by
the Finance Assistant, only after proper matching of supporting documentation. Supporting documentation
is marked with the check number when a check is prepared. The check signer reviews all supporting
documentation. Purchasing documents are accounted for and controlled by the Operations Manager.
Signed disbursement checks are returned to the Finance Assistant / Operations Assistant for mailing.
Mitigating controls: The CFO opens and reviews bank statements and does not have authorization to sign
checks.
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All bank and interfund transfers are authorized by the CFO and the Sr. VP of Operations.
Electronic/Online Payments

Online bill pay can be used for payments to vendors that are on the Audit & Finance Committee pre-
approved list. The same cash disbursement control procedures are followed, except that payments are
acknowledged by two authorized bank signers after the online payment is complete.

Bank Account Reconciliations

Bank accounts are reconciled monthly by the Finance Assistant and reconciliations are reviewed by the
Operations Manager and the CFO. All reconciling items are appropriate and supported. All bank
statements received in the mail are delivered unopened to the CFO who opens, reviews and signs off prior
to reconciliations being performed.

Journal entries

Non-standard journal entries are recorded in the general ledger by Operations Manager and the Finance
Assistant and reviewed by the CFO.

SUPPORT, PROGRAM SERVICE FEES, REVENUE AND RECEIVABLE CONTROL
ACTIVITIES

Program Service Receivables

Invoices are prepared once a month by the Finance Assistant. All invoices are numbered and issued in
sequential order. Invoices are posted to the accounting system as payment is received. The individual(s)
charged with the billing duties is also responsible for accounts receivable with the Operations Manager
monitoring and reviewing the process.

Pledges Receivable (Not Applicable)

Collections
There are no established credit policies.

When cash payments are received they are posted to customer accounts by the Finance Assistant. The
GCEDC/GGLDC does not prepare regular customer statements. Invoices for rent and revolving loan fund
payments are mailed once a month and outstanding invoices older than 30 days are followed up via
telephone by the Operations Manager, Senior VP of Operations, or CFO.

Trial Balance

The accounts receivable aging is maintained separately from the general ledger. The aging is reconciled
once a month by the Operations Manager. Program revenues recorded are compared with the budget
monthly by the Operations Manager and any significant deviations from budget are investigated and
explained.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Program Services fee write-offs:

All write-offs to rent or revolving loan fund accounts are approved by the GCEDC/GGLDC Board of
Directors. The accounts receivable aging is reviewed monthly by the Operations Manager. Accounts are
deemed possibly uncollectible and written off to the allowance for doubtful accounts when they meet the
following criteria: When the board of directors determines that all efforts to collect have been exhausted.



INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVE CONTROL ACTIVITIES

The GCEDC and GGLDC’s Investment Policies are provided separately.

EXPENSES FOR PROGRAM AND SUPPORTING SERVICES AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
PURCHASES CONTROL ACTIVITIES

Purchasing (Other than Inventory)

Purchasing is done by the Operations Assistant. For all purchases (other than items of inventory), the
purchases are supported by approvals and authorizations. The GCEDC/GGLDC does not require pre-
numbered purchase orders. Individuals with the right to approve and authorize purchases are the
President/CEO, CFO, and Senior VP of Operations. The Operations Manager approves purchases of
supplies, equipment and postage that are within budget as well as any other purchases that were planned
for within the budget.

Receiving, Recording Payable and Expense

When the ordered items are received they are inspected for condition and counted by the Operations
Assistant. Due to the small nature of the organization, full segregation of duties is not possible. The
individual responsible for receiving is also responsible for purchasing, with oversight by Operations
Manager or Finance Assistant. '

The invoices subsequently received from vendors are matched up to the purchase orders and receiving
reports and compared for quantities received, product ordered, pricing and clerical accuracy by the
Operations Manager. For any goods that are returned, the shipping documents are maintained and reviewed
and matched to vendor credit memos.

The payables are paid approximately twice a month by the Finance Assistant. The checks are reviewed and
signed by two authorized bank account signers.

Trial Balance

The accounts payable aging is maintained separately from the general ledger. The aging is reconciled
monthly by the Operations Manager. The GCEDC/GGLDC does not prepare monthly vendor statements.
The President/CEO, CFO and the Audit & Finance Committee review the detailed monthly financial
statements and compare the balances in expense accounts to budgeted amounts and any significant
deviations from expectations are investigated and explained.

GCEDC PAYROLL AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTROL ACTIVITIES

Payroll

Employees are paid biweekly out of the Five Star Bank primary checking account. Funds are transferred
into the account used for payroll from the Five Star Bank primary savings account by the Operations
Manager. The GCEDC transfers funds to cover payroll as needed. All fund transfers are authorized by the
CFO and Senior VP of Operations. Employees are never paid in cash.

Salaried employees are not required to submit weekly time records however; a record of absence is to be
maintained by each employee, kept current and electronically stored in a common location as directed.
Employees must have vacation compensation approved by the President/CEO or CFO. The individuals
responsible for approving time are not responsible for processing or recording payroll.
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Hourly employees are required to submit bi-weekly time records to their supervisor to report hours worked.

Complete Payroll Processing is the service provider used to process payroll. All the payroll information
provided to the service organization such as pay rates and withholdings is authorized by the President/CEO
and/or CFO. Bi-weekly payroll information is submitted to Complete Payroll Processing by the Operations
Manager after compiling adequate support for the time worked by the employees. The registers produced
by the service are reviewed after processing and approved by Operations Manager. The review is done to
ensure the payroll transactions are only for authorized employees and that the correct pay rate is used.
GCEDC does not pay commission to its employees.

All payroll checks are pre-numbered and used in sequence and any unissued checks are controlled by
Complete Payroll Processing.

When new employees are hired they complete the appropriate paperwork including withholding forms and
authorizations for payroll deductions that are maintained in personnel files by the Operations Manager and
are entered into the payroll system by the Operations Manager. When employees are terminated they are
removed from the payroll system by the Operations Manager. When there are raises or changes in pay
rates, they are approved by the President/CEO or CFO and entered into the payroll system by the Operations
Manager. All changes in personnel data are reported promptly so they can be properly taken care of in the
payroll database.

The timely remittance of payroll taxes and of the payroll tax returns is overseen by Complete Payroll
Processing.

Employee Benefits

For all benefits provided to employees such as health insurance, retirement plans, and fringe benefits,
support is maintained in the personnel files authorizing deductions by the Operations Manager. Individuals
with the appropriate level of knowledge are responsible for monitoring employee benefit matters and for
ensuring withholdings such as 403(b) or NYS Deferred Compensation deferrals and cafeteria plan
withholdings are remitted timely. These individuals include the CFO and Operations Manager.

Trial Balance

The Operations Manager reviews the monthly financial statements and compares the balances in the payroll
and employee benefit expense accounts to budgeted amounts and any significant deviations from
expectations are investigated and explained. The detailed payroll records are also reconciled by the
Operations Manager to the payroll tax returns quarterly, and the total W-2s are reconciled to the general
ledger at year end by the Operations Manager.

When necessary the appropriate payroll accruals including accruals for compensated absences are made to
the general ledger by the Operations Manager.

Compuiers /IT

All computers are password protected. Peachtree is password protected. Each user has an independent
password. Those with access to the Peachtree system are the Operations Manager, Finance Assistant, and
CFO. The CFO does not post or change any data in the system; he/she reviews data only

All employee computer files are backed up to the server and the server is backed up to an off-site location
(Erie County IDA) on a nightly basis. The back-up is monitored by the IT Consultant and the Operations
Manager.
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There is a firewall in place. Multi-factor authentication is used by all staff.

GCEDC Employee Reimbursements

Employee reimbursement requests are submitted to and approved by the Senior VP of Operations and
CFO. The President/CEO must sign off on requests submitted by the Senior VP of Operations or CFO.
Two Board members must sign off on requests submitted by the President/CEO.

GCEDC Travel Authorization

Travel involving overnight accommodation or travel outside of New York State requires prior approval of
the President & CEO (or the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board, in the case of the CEO’s travel).

Signed travel authorization forms are attached to subsequent reimbursement requests to verify
that expenditures are appropriate and in line with the prior approval.
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GCEDC/GGLDC

Pre-Approved List of Vendors That Can Be Paid Online:

- Tompkins Trust Company (Visa)
- Selective Insurance
- Toshiba Financial Services
National Grid
National Fuel
- Five Star Bank (Loan payments)
- KeyBank (Line of Credit payments)
- Bank of Castile
- Five Star Bank
Quadient (Postage)
Traveler’s (D&O Insurance)
- Town of Batavia (Water/Sewer)
- Empire Access

List Last Reviewed & Approved by Audit & Finance Committee:

GCEDC - 6/27/2023

GGLDC - 6/27/2023
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STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.

Current Officers

Pete Zeliff, Chair

Paul Battaglia, Vice Chair
Steve Mountain, Secretary
Tim Hens Treasurer

Authorized to request information regarding all bank accounts and transfer funds between
accounts for the STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.

L. Farrell
P. Kennett

The following are authorized signors of agreements, contracts, deeds and any other
instruments as approved by the Board or operational items within the approved budget
limits:

Chairman (per by-laws)
Vice Chairman (per by-laws)

Bank Account Authorized Signers

Audit & Finance Comunittee members are authorized bank signers.

All STAMP Sewer Works, Inc. checks and / or Line of Credit withdrawals must be signed by two authorized
signors.
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MOU with Village of Oakfield

Discussion: The GCEDC, STAMP Sewer Works Corp. and the Village of Oakfield are willing to work
together on the possible design, construction and operation of a new force main sewer line from
the STAMP Site to the Village of Oakfield Waste Water Treatment Facility (“Oakfield WWTF”) to

provide wastewater treatment services to STAMP.

Fund Commitment: None at this time. Any costs will be brought forward prior to approval
for payment.

Committee Action request: Recommend approval of executing the MOU with Village of
Oakfield.
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May , 2024
VIA EMAIL

The Honorable David Boyle
Mayor, Village of Oakfield
39 Main Street

Oakfield New York 14125

Re:  Development of Western New York S ce & Technology Advanced
Manufacturing Park (“STAMP”) Wastew‘%% rvices, located on approximately
1,250 Acres Located in the Town of Alabama, New York located along the west
side uf New York State Highway 77/ 3 {morth 5?% Judge Road) approximately five

Dear Mayor Boyle:

of the key ten‘né\upnn which the
, New York 14125 (“Village™) on
Deveiﬂpment Center ("GCEDC™),

Please allow this letter of intent (“L
Village of Oakfield, with offices a
behalf of the Village Trustees, the Ge
an industrial development agency forme
Municipal Law, and STAMP Sewer Wufk%g
SSW together with GC«F DC awith
York 14020, {mIlectlwa as the ;
together on the possible; asign
the STAMP Site to the ﬂ{t

to provide wa ewater I.r&a

: arty } would be w11]1ng tcr work
truction & d peration ﬂf new tmu: main sewer line from
field WB.S??{:

tituie?’- inding expression of intent by the Parties and any final
1o the preparation, negotiation and execution of definitive

he “Definitive Agreement”). Subject to the foregoing
 the Definitive Agreement will contain the following

Pleasen
and binl mgreemenm shaﬁ ¢ subjei
binding le ;
limitations, 1t”*1" ‘the Parties’ ll%%?@l}ilﬂﬂ tha

terms and condlt x%%
%{3&

1. Plan. SSW currehtl}f IEi‘;dB to build an wastewater treatment plant at the STAMP Site

and associated force main to discharge post-treated sanitary effluent and post-treated
process water to Oak’ Orchard Creek in the Town of Shelby. For various reasons, GCEDC
and SSW are exploring other solutions to provide permanent wastewater treatment services
to the first two tenants at STAMP, one of whom is currently under construction and the
other of whom is expected to start construction in the next few weeks. The Parties will
explore and work together on the possible design, construction and operation of a new force
main sewer line (the “Sewer Line”) to facilitate the transport of wastewater from the

STAMP Site for treatment at the Oakfield WWTF prior to discharge (the “Project”).

Doc #5211133.5
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Sewer Route. The GCEDC and SSW will work together with the Village to evaluate and
present routing options for the Sewer Line. After consultation, the GCEDC and SSW will
present a preferred route of the Sewer Line to the Village, upon which GCEDC and SWW
and the Village will work to finalize the route of the Sewer Line.

Oakfield WWTF Initial Allocation of Treatment Capacity to STAMP. The Village will
reserve an initial treatment capacity of twenty thousand (20,000) gallons per day within the
Oakfield WWTTF for current and future tenants at the STAMP Site. The Parties will work
together to confirm that the Oakfield WWTF has sufficient existing capacity to handle the
initial treatment capacity without substantial upurades aﬂd undue additional stress to the
Oakfield WWTEF. To the extent upgrades or :mpmvemaﬁ’m are required, GCEDC and SSW
shall be responsible for all costs associated with s&mc and will pay the Village of Oakfield
for invoices submitted within 30 days for rf:asmﬁlbfc%?ch neering costs that the Village
might incur relative to evaluating and/or maki g unpmvg??ﬁ%‘ s to meet the initial treatment
capacity.

Oakfield WWTF Future Allocation of’ “reatment Capacity to S l}‘L__MP The Parties will
monitor and evaluate the overall capacity d"t the Oakfield WWTF and will work together
to determine whether the Qakfield WWTF ‘ca prn%lﬁe additional t?%ﬁ;ment capacity to
STAMP including any nmes*);drygaddltmnal nnprn}mfmnu relative to same. To the extent
upgrades or improvements are re:gulr GCEDC and SSW shall be responsible for all costs
associated with same and will pa} the Nullage of Daicfield for invoices submitted within

30 days for leasonalc ngmeenng t:{gstb lh L 31& "v'lllage r_mght incur relative to evaluating

to prow:ie for Fac:lﬁ%%
SSW shall ba‘;ggspcmmb"

ed wnhmg’\i{g daws for reasonable engineering costs that the
Nﬂluatmg and/or making improvements to accommodate

“v’llla}ge might iner: %ﬂtwe
the pI‘lri:nspl'u:urmr redu

.....

......

the Oakfield WW - e SSW will be responsible for maintaining the Sewer Line up to
the point that the Sewér Line connects into the Oakfield WWTF system.

STAMP Service Agreement. In conjunction with the development of Definitive
Agreements, SSW and the Village will enter into a service agreement to provide the
STAMP Site with the wastewater treatment services contemplated under this LOL.

Consultation and Cooperation. The Parties will attend periodic meetings at mutually
agreeable times to confer about the progress of the Parties’ activities in connection to the
Plan identified in Section 1 of this LOI. The Parties will cooperate with one another, in
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. This LOI shall termiinate at th

good faith, to effectuate the Plan, and each Party will take such, and to execute and deliver
to one another such documents, as one Party may reasonably request of the other, so as to
carry out more effectively and completely the purposes of the Definitive Agreement. Each
Party will bear its own costs in consulting and cooperating with the other.

Definitive Agreements Required. This LOI reflects the preliminary non-binding concepts
with respect to certain terms. No Party will have any legal obligation arising out of this
LOI or otherwise, to any other Party or any other person or entity by reason of this LOI or
any other matter contemplated hereby or giving rise hereto, unless and until the parties
execute Definitive Agreements and then only to the extent set forth in the Definitive
Agreements. If so executed, the Definitive Agreements shall supersede the terms and
conditions of this LOI to the extent therein pm;g:ﬂed and will contain such terms,
conditions, covenants, representations and warranties related to the matters contemplated
under this LOI as the Parties may mutually agree upon. ﬁ}: Parties hereby acknowledge
that the Definitive Agreements must mak® | “amtimber of matters which are

s //}éjpféVlSlon for afy
material to the matters contemplated uri this LOI and to whichthe Parties have not yet
agreed.

\‘

/’/47/ 7,

arties.to work toéeiher on the possible design.
construction and operation of ax‘%m foree! maln scwcpﬁme from the STAMP Site to the
Oakfield WWTF to provide wdst@%ater treatment scwué’% to STAMP and the preparation

.....

c:f a more cnmniéfé %{%?ument betwaen the paﬁm“s Lnnimmnwél] of the terms of binding

.......

\\

%B;;ﬂ 15, 2025 or within Sixty (60) days after

wrlttcn nut:ce by erihe; ]:raftg(m t:mnmate th&ﬁ%&} JO1 15 received.
.3?\'-.. iﬁﬁ:s'{ i i z 9\ ‘S;EV

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

Genesee County Economic Development Center

By:

Name:

Title:

Date: , 2024
STAMP Sewer Works, Inc.
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By:
Name:
Title:
Date: , 2024

The Village of Oakfield, New York

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:
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